
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

PZHAC WORK SESSION 
AUGUST 17, 2015 

 
THE PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORICAL APPROPRIATENESS COMMISSION (PZHAC) 
WILLHOLD A WORK SESSION ON MONDAY, AUGUST 17, 2015 AT 5:00 P.M. IN THE BOARD 
ROOM OF THE MESILLA TOWN HALL, 2231 AVENIDA DE MESILLA TO DISCUSS THE 
FOLLOWING: 

 
a. S15-001 - Submitted by Sam and Beatrice Bernal, a request to or the PZHAC to determine what 

requirements will be necessary to complete an application for a subdivision of property at and behind 2615 
Calle de Sur. Zoned: Historic Residential (HR). (20 min.) 
 

b. Submitted by Scott Bannister, a request to discuss the concept of using an approximately 52 acre parcel at 
1113 S Hwy 292 owned by the Bombach Limited Partnership as a baseball and sports complex. Zoned: 
Rural Farm (RF). (20 min.) 
 

c. Submitted by Davie and Kelly Salas, a request to discuss a revised plan for the development of two parcels 
having a total of 0.55 acres at 2415 and 2417 Calle de Parian. (Permits for these  properties will be voted on 
in the regular meeting.) Zoned: Historic Residential (HR). (20 min.) 
 

PZHAC MEETING 
AUGUST 17, 2015 

 
THE PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORICAL APPROPRIATENESS COMMISSION (PZHAC) WILL 
HOLD  ITS  REGULARLY SCHEDULED MEETING MONDAY, AUGUST 17, 2015 AT 6:00 P.M. IN 
THE BOARD ROOM OF THE MESILLA TOWN HALL, 2231 AVENIDA DE MESILLA 
 
1. PLEDGE OFALLEGIANCE 

 
2. ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM  

 
3. CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 

 
4. *ACCEPTANCE OF THE CONSENT AGENDA 

Note: Items on the agenda indicated by an asterisk (*) are on the consent agenda and will be voted on with one 
motion unless a Commissioner requests that a specific item be removed. 
 
*PZHACMINUTES: 

Regular Meeting Minutes of August 3, 2015 
 

*ADMINISTRATIVE (CONSENT) APPROVALS: 
Building Permit Requests: 

a. Case 012405 – 213 Capri Rd., a request by Bob Hamilton for a building permit to paint the trim on an 
existing dwelling at this address. Zoned: Single Family (SF). 

 
 
 



 

 
5. PZHAC NEW BUSINESS: 

Discussion Item Decisions: 
b. SUB15-001 - Submitted by Sam and Beatrice Bernal, a request to or the PZHAC to determine what 

requirements will be necessary to complete an application for a subdivision of property at and behind 2615 
Calle de Sur. Zoned: Historic Residential (HR). 
 

c. A determination as to whether or not  Scott Bannister should pursue the concept of a  baseball and sports 
complex for the approximately 52 acre parcel at 1113 S Hwy 292 owned by the Bombach Limited 
Partnership. Zoned: Rural Farm (RF). 
 

Special Use Permit 
       ** A PUBLIC HEARING MUST BE HELD PRIOR TO ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING ITEM. 
 

d. S15-001 – Submitted by Roxanna Gate for2 the “Roundtable Children’s Academy Daycare and 
Preschool”, a request for a Special Use Permit to allow a day care center and preschool to operate at a 
former restaurant at this location. The SUP includes a request for approval of a Business Permit and 
a Sign Permit (Case 012407) for the proposed use. Zoned: General Commercial (C). 
 

Building Permit Requests: 
e. Case 012388 – Submitted by G.L. Green and Associates for David and Joan Hirsch, a request for a  

building permit to allow construction of a pool cabana and an addition to a house located at 2979 Camino 
Castillo. Zoned: Single Family (R-1). 
 

f. Case 012406 – Submitted by Fred Flores for Armando and Judy Alba, a request for a building permit to 
allow a rear patio on an existing dwelling at 2691 McDowell Rd. to be fully enclosed. Zoned: Single 
Family R-1). 
 

g. Case 012410 – Submitted by Davie and Kelly Salas, a request for a building permit to construct a house 
and accessory dwelling on a 0.23 acre property located at 2419 Calle de Parian. Zoned: Historic Residential 
(HR). 

 
6. PUBLICCOMMENTS 

 
7. PZHAC/STAFFCOMMENTS  

   
8. ADJOURNMENT OF THE REGULAR PZHAC MEETING 

 
SPECIAL BOT/PZHAC WORK SESSION 

AUGUST 17, 2015 
 

THE MESILLA BOARD OF TRUSTEES (BOT) AND THE PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORICAL 
APPROPRIATENESS COMMISSION (PZHAC) WILL HOLD A SPECIAL WORK SESSION ON 
MONDAY, AUGUST 17, 2015 IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING THE REGULAR MEETNG OF THE 
PZHAC (@ 7:00 P.M.) IN THE BOARD ROOM OF THE MESILLA TOWN HALL, 2231 AVENIDA DE 
MESILLA TO DISCUSS THE CODE AMENDMENT FOR TEMPORARY AND ITINERANT VENDORS 

  
NOTICE 

If you need an accommodation for a disability to enable you to fully 
participate in the hearing or meeting, please contact us at 524-3262 at 
least 48 hours prior to the meeting.   

Posted on 8/14/15 at the following locations: Town Clerk’s Office 2231 
Avenida de Mesilla, Public Safety Building 2670 Calle de Parian, Mesilla 
Community Center 2251 Calle de Santiago, Shorty’s Food Mart 2290 
Avenida de Mesilla, Ristramnn Chile Co., 2531 Avenida de Mesilla and the 
U.S. Post Office 2253 Calle de Parian. 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

PZHAC WORK SESSION 

AUGUST 17, 2015 
 

 

  





PZHAC WORK SESSION 
AUGUST 17, 2015 

ITEM 1 
 

CASE S15-001 
 
S15-001 - Submitted by Sam and Beatrice Bernal, a request to or the PZHAC to determine what 
requirements will be necessary to complete an application for a subdivision of property at and behind 2615 
Calle de Sur. Zoned: Historic Residential (HR). (20 min.) 
 
The following is the pre-application  procedure from the MTC for  submitting a preliminary plat to the 
PZHAC. This process is to allow the PZHAC to determine what will be needed from the subdivider to 
address any conditions that may arise from the proposed subdivision. 

17.10.010 Pre-application procedure. 

A. Prior to the filing of an application for approval of a preliminary plat, the subdivider is requested to 
confer with the planning staff and other town departments so as to become acquainted with these 
regulations.  

This step in the process has been done. 

B. The pre-application conference with the planning staff does not require a formal application, fee, or the 
filing of a plat, and is considered an advisable step in the procedure rather than mandatory. The planning 
staff does not assume any responsibility for a lack of understanding of these regulations on the part of the 
subdivider, and any advice or opinion as to the feasibility of the proposed subdivision expressed by the 
planning staff shall not bind any subsequent actions of the planning and zoning commission or the board 
of trustees relative to the proposal. 

C. The subdivider shall then submit to the planning commission a preliminary plan and supporting data. 
This step does not require formal application or filing of plat with the planning commission.  

This step is the reason for the subdivision request being brought up at this work session. The applicant 
is requesting to know what needs to be submitted with the preliminary plat in order for the application 
to be accepted by the  PZHAC. 

D. Within 35 days the planning commission shall inform the subdivider that the plans and data as 
submitted or as modified do or do not meet the objectives of these regulations, and it shall express its 
reasons therefor. [Ord. 89-01; prior code § 11-5-2.A] 

The proposed subdivision has been discussed as a concept at previous work sessions. The purpose of 
this work session is not to discuss the proposed subdivision itself, but to determine what studies and 
information (i.e.: drainage plans, soil studies, grading plans, etc.) the PZHAC will require the 
applicant  to provide with the plat in order to provided necessary information for review.  

Attached are Chapters 17.20 and 17.40 of the BTC outlining possible requirements of the Code for 
subdivisions.  (Areas of interest are highlighted in yellow.) 

The applicant has provided a subdivision application and preliminary plat to Staff.  (The plat is not 
being submitted at this time, but will be formally submitted when it is determined by the PZHAC 
that the application is complete.) 
 

  



 

Chapter 17.20 
PLATS AND DATA FOR PRELIMINARY APPROVAL 

Sections: 
17.20.010    Preliminary plat. 
17.20.020    Storm drainage analysis plan. 
17.20.030    Improvements. 

17.20.010 Preliminary plat. 

The preliminary plat shall be at a minimum scale of one inch equals 100 feet. In no case shall it be on less 
than 18-inch by 24-inch sheets of paper. It shall show existing conditions and all proposals, including the 
following: 

A. Name of proposed subdivision, name and address of subdivider, agent, and principal persons 
preparing the preliminary plat. 

B. Scale and north arrow. 

C. Proposed benchmark locations, proposed location of and method of tie to permanent survey 
monuments, and proposed location and type of subdivision control monuments. Descriptions of 
all monuments found or set. 

D. Plat boundary lines: bearing in degrees, minutes, and seconds; distances in feet and 
hundredths. 

E. Existing conditions of the site and its environs shall include the following: 

1. Present site designation or subdivision name. 

2. Easements on site: location, width and purpose. 

3. Public right-of-way on and within 150 feet of the site: name, type, and width of paving. 

4. Utilities on and adjacent to the site: location and size of water wells, water reservoirs, 
water line, sanitary and storm sewers; location of gas lines, fire hydrants, electric and 
telephone poles, and street lights. If water mains and sewers are not on or adjacent to the 
tract, indicate the direction, distance, and size of nearest lines. 

5. Ground elevation on the side based on mean sea level datum as established by the U.S. 
Coast and Geodetic Survey: 

a. For land that slopes less than approximately one percent, show contour lines at 
intervals of not more than one foot and spot elevations at all breaks in grade 
along all drainage channels or swales, and at selected points not more than 100 
feet apart in all directions. 

b. For land that slopes approximately between two percent to five percent, show 
contour lines at intervals of not more than two feet. 

c. For land that slopes more than five percent, show contour lines at intervals of 
not more than five feet. 

http://www.codepublishing.com/NM/mesilla/html/Mesilla17/Mesilla1720.html#17.20.010
http://www.codepublishing.com/NM/mesilla/html/Mesilla17/Mesilla1720.html#17.20.020
http://www.codepublishing.com/NM/mesilla/html/Mesilla17/Mesilla1720.html#17.20.030


6. Existing storm drainage facilities on and adjacent to the site. 

7. Conditions on adjacent land significantly affecting design of the subdivision. 
Approximate direction and gradients of ground slope, character and location of 
development, and building types. 

8. Zoning on and adjacent to the site. If the area proposed to be subdivided is zoned 
Single-Family Residential, Historical Residential, Commercial or Historical Commercial 
and is adjacent to active agricultural operations, then the subdivider shall be responsible 
for the installation of a wall or fencing between the subdivision and the agricultural 
operation. The planning and zoning commission shall determine if the standards proposed 
for the wall/fence are adequate during the preliminary plat stage of development. Cross 
reference: MTC 18.45.040(N), Perimeter wall or fencing. 

9. A statement of ownership, signed by the subdivider. 

10. Total area of the proposed plat to the nearest one-tenth acre. 

F. Location map showing location of the site in relation to well-known landmarks and town 
boundaries. 

G. Proposed lot lines and public right-of-way lines; street names; right-of-way and street widths; 
indicate roadways intended to be private, rights-of-way for public services or utilities, and any 
limitations thereof. 

H. All lots in any subdivision shall meet the requirements of the zoning ordinance and each lot 
shall be dimensioned in such a manner that setbacks as required by the ordinance shall be met for 
any structure or building that may be or will be constructed on the lot. No platted lot within a 
subdivision shall contain less square footage than that required by MTC Title 18, Zoning. 

I. Number or letter to identify each proposed lot and block. 

J. Locations, dimensions, approximate areas, and purpose of lots proposed to be reserved for the 
public. 

K. Sites and approximate area for any multifamily dwellings or nonresidential uses. 

L. Every lot shall front on or have access to a public street. 

M. All public entity easements and improvements. [Ord. 2001-09 § 2; Ord. 89-01; prior code 
§ 11-5-4.A] 

17.20.020 Storm drainage analysis plan. 

A storm drainage analysis and plat shall be prepared and signed by a professional engineer registered in 
New Mexico to include the following: 

A. An up-to-date topographic survey or contour map of the area to be subdivided and contributing 
watershed showing existing structures and pavement and denoting existing elevations above 
mean sea level of all land features and improvements that would affect drainage. 

B. An aerial photograph at the scale of one inch equals 100 feet or one inch equals 200 feet 
showing the area to be subdivided. 

http://www.codepublishing.com/NM/mesilla/html/Mesilla18/Mesilla1845.html#18.45.040
http://www.codepublishing.com/NM/mesilla/html/Mesilla18/Mesilla18.html#18


C. A drainage report with a map identifying and locating all rivers, creeks, arroyos, draws, 
washes or any other channel having definite banks and bed with visible evidence of the 
occasional flow of water. It shall include computations of the watershed area draining into each 
watercourse, identification and analysis of permeability of soils in each watershed, and 
calculations based on the S.C.S. Engineering Field Manual procedures for estimating runoff from 
a 100-year frequency storm of: 

1. The volume and peak discharge of storm surface waters emanating from higher lands 
and drainage through the area to be subdivided (external drainage). 

2. The volumes and peak discharges of internal drainage originating from the land to be 
subdivided prior to and after completion of the proposed development. 

D. A detailed storm drainage plan showing how the runoff from a 100-year frequency storm will 
be maintained on the property being subdivided. Means of detention basins, retention basins, 
swales on lots or any other method approved by the commission so as to insure that new 
development will not increase the peak discharge load on the existing drainage system or cause 
damage to properties at lower elevations. A map submitted with the plan shall indicate all points 
of entry and discharge of storm runoff prior to and after development, as well as proposed 
easements and structures provided for containment or controlled discharge of storm drainage. 
Points of discharge of natural watercourses shall not be altered by the development. 

E. A grading plan showing any proposed alteration, including finished elevations of areas to be 
graded, paved areas, building sites, retention or detention areas retaining walls and other 
structures. It shall be accompanied by a signed agreement by the owner of the lands being platted 
binding on his heirs or subsequent owners, that no grading, land filling, excavating or other 
alteration will be done except pursuant to the approved or amended grading plan. 

F. The plan shall show that all property within the subdivision is developed in such a manner the 
flood damage will be minimized and that construction and substantial improvements are elevated 
to the 100-year flood level, if the property lies in an area which has been designated a floodplain 
under the National Flood Insurance Program. New water and sewer systems (including on-site 
systems) shall be located to avoid impairment or contamination during flooding. 

G. Areas which will be inundated by runoff from a 100-year or greater frequency storm shall not 
be divided into lots for sale in any proposed subdivision. 

H. A copy of the subdivision plat and drainage plan will be provided to any public entity with 
holdings in the area for their review in order to avoid urban conflicts with the operation and 
maintenance of utility systems. Their review shall be advisory only. [Ord. 89-01; prior code § 11-
5-4.B] 

17.20.030 Improvements. 

A report on the proposed method of installing utilities, street paving, curb and gutter, sidewalks, 
and sewer service shall be prepared and submitted to include the approximate time for 
accomplishing such improvements. Such improvements shall be based on the maximum 
population density allowed in the zoning district in which the subdivision is located. [Ord. 89-01; 
prior code § 11-5-4.C] 

 



Chapter 17.40 
VARIANCES AND EXCEPTIONS 

Sections: 
17.40.010    Allowed when. 
17.40.020    Application. 
17.40.030    State law mandatory. 
17.40.040    Final approval. 
17.40.050    Waivers. 

17.40.010 Allowed when. 

Where, in the case of a particular proposed subdivision, it can be shown that strict compliance with the 
requirements of this regulation would result in inhibiting the achievement of the objectives of these 
regulations, the planning commission may vary, modify, or waive the requirements. No variance shall be 
allowed when such variance is requested because of inadequate drainage. [Ord. 89-01; prior code § 11-5-
8.A] 

17.40.020 Application. 

Application for any variation shall be submitted in writing by the subdivider at the time the preliminary 
plat is filed, and shall state fully the grounds for the application and the facts relied upon by the 
subdivider. [Ord. 89-01; prior code § 11-5-8.B] 

17.40.030 State law mandatory. 

In no case shall any variation or modification be contrary to the mandatory requirements of state law. The 
variation shall not be in conflict with any zoning ordinance and map. [Ord. 89-01; prior code § 11-5-8.C] 

17.40.040 Final approval. 

Final approval of variances granted by the planning commission rests with the Board of Ttrustees. [Ord. 
89-01; prior code § 11-5-8.D] 

  

http://www.codepublishing.com/NM/mesilla/html/mesilla17/Mesilla1740.html#17.40.010
http://www.codepublishing.com/NM/mesilla/html/mesilla17/Mesilla1740.html#17.40.020
http://www.codepublishing.com/NM/mesilla/html/mesilla17/Mesilla1740.html#17.40.030
http://www.codepublishing.com/NM/mesilla/html/mesilla17/Mesilla1740.html#17.40.040
http://www.codepublishing.com/NM/mesilla/html/mesilla17/Mesilla1740.html#17.40.050








PZHAC WORK SESSION 
AUGUST 17, 2015 

ITEM 2 
 
 

 
 
 
Submitted by Scott Bannister, a request to discuss the concept of using an approximately 52 acre parcel at 
1113 S Hwy 292 owned by the Bombach Limited Partnership as a baseball and sports complex. Zoned: 
Rural Farm (RF)  
 
Attached is an example of a Baseball Complex that Mr. Bannister had proposed for the Field of Dreams 
area. Mr. Bannister will provide further information and plans at the work session.  
 
The PZHAC has heard discussions about the potential use of this property at work sessions over the past 
year. Most of these uses revolved around the property being used for higher density residential, but the 
PZHAC was concerned with preserving the “greenspace” around the Town. However, the concept of a 
possible use of the property in a way where much of the openness would be preserved seemed to be a 
possibility. Mr. Bannister has expressed a desire to meet with the PZHAC and explore that possibility. 
 
 
 
 
  









PZHAC WORK SESSION 
AUGUST 17, 2015 

ITEM 3 
 
 
 

Submitted by Davie and Kelly Salas, a request to discuss a revised plan for the development of two 
parcels having a total of 0.55 acres at 2415 and 2417 Calle de Parian. Zoned: Historic Residential (HR). 
 
Mr. Salas has revised his plans for the two properties on Calle de Parian. Originally, Mr. Salas had met 
with the PZHAC in several work sessions in the past year to discuss the concept of combining the 
properties and placing five dwelling on the resulting property.  Mr. Salas is now considering keeping the 
properties separate, and placing a primary and secondary dwelling on each property for a total of four 
dwellings. This will consist of restoring the dwelling that currently exists on 2415 Calle de Parian, and 
demolishing an old concrete and adobe structure that exists on the property at 2417 Calle de Parian. 
 
(The structure to be demolished at 2417 Calle de Parian does not appear in the Historic Register for 
Mesilla.) 
 
The concept of an accessory dwelling on a property in the Historic Residential district has been allowed 
in the past, provided that the Code requirement of 4000 square feet of lot size per dwelling is met for each 
lot. (The lots meet this requirement.) Mr. Sala will provide further details at the work session. 
 









 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PZHAC MEETING 

MINUTES 

AUGUST 3, 2015 
  





 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

PZHAC MEETING 
MINUTES 

AUGUST 3, 2015 
 
THE PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORICAL APPROPRIATENESS COMMISSION (PZHAC) WILL HOLD ITS 
REGULARLY SCHEDULED MEETING MONDAY, AUGUST 3, 2015 AT 6:00 P.M. IN THE BOARD ROOM OF 
THE MESILLA TOWN HALL, 2231 AVENIDA DE MESILLA (The meeting was convened at 6:00 pm.) 
1. PLEDGE OFALLEGIANCE 

 
2. ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM  

Commissioner McLeod was absent. All other Commissioners were present. A quorum was present. 
 

3. CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
There were no changes to the agenda. A motion was made by Commissioner Prieto to accept the 
agenda, seconded by Commissioner Lucero, and accepted by acclaim. 
 

4. *ACCEPTANCE OF THE CONSENT AGENDA 
Note: Items on the agenda indicated by an asterisk (*) are on the consent agenda and will be voted on with one motion 
unless a Commissioner requests that a specific item be removed. 
A motion to accept the Consent Agenda was made by Commissioner Lucero, seconded by 
Commissioner Prieto, and approved by acclaim. 
 
*PZHAC MINUTES: 

Regular Meeting Minutes of July 20, 2015 
Approved as part of the consent agenda. 
 

*ADMINISTRATIVE (CONSENT) APPROVALS: 
Building Permit Requests: 
a. Case 012395 – 2909 La Mesilla Circle, submitted by Cindy and Tim Altamirano; a request for a building 

permit to repaint two exterior doors on a dwelling at this address. Zoned Single Family (R-1). 
Approved as part of the consent agenda. 
 

b. Case 012396 – 3010 Mesilla Verde Terrace, submitted by Dolphin Pools, LLC for Edmund and Jaqueline 
Beachum; a request for a permit to construct a built-in pool behind an existing dwelling at this address. 
Zoned Residential Agricultural (RA). 
Approved as part of the consent agenda. 
 

c. Case 012397 – 2171 Calle de Guadalupe, submitted by Positive Energy Solar for Kenneth Dickson; a 
request for a permit to allow a photovoltaic array to be constructed on a roof of an existing dwelling at this 
address. Zoned: Historic Residential (HR).   

  Approved as part of the consent agenda. 
 

d. Case 012398 – 2109 Calle de Parian, submitted by Arte Fountain for Robert Fountain; a request for a 
permit to repair and repaint stucco on the south wall of a business (Nambe LLC) located at this location. 
Zoned: Historical Commercial (HC). 

  Approved as part of the consent agenda. 
 

5. PZHAC NEW BUSINESS: 
Building Permit Review: 
e. Case 012394 - Submitted by Lori Gorton; a diagram for final approval of a proposed gate across the front 

of a driveway of a dwelling located at 2030 Calle del Norte. Zoned: Historic Residential (HR).  



 

A brief presentation was given by staff. The PZHAC determined that the proposed gate was 
consistent with the Codes for the area. The only issue brought up was the potential for the gate to 
sag at the end over time. Commissioner Apodaca made a motion to approve the building permit 
with the condition that the gate be kept from sagging, seconded by Commissioner Prieto, and 
approved by acclaim. 
 

Building Permit Requests: 
f. Case 012399 – Submitted by Heriberto Lopez; a request for a building permit to allow a wooden fence to 

be constructed at 2001 Calle del Norte (Southwest corner of Calle Del Norte and Calle de Guadalupe. 
along a property line with another neighbor to the south. Zoned: Historic Commercial (HC). 
A brief presentation was given by staff. There were no issues. Commissioner Prieto made a motion 
to approve the building permit, seconded by Commissioner Apodaca, and approved by acclaim. 
 

g. Case 012400 – Submitted by Meg Sanchez-Lammers, a request for a building permit to allow wooden 
panels to be installed on an existing fence along Calle de Arroyo on a property at  Calle de Arroyofence to 
be constructed at 2001 Calle del Norte (Southwest corner of Calle Del Norte and Calle de Guadalupe. 
along a property line with another neighbor to the south. Zoned: Historic Commercial (HC). 
A brief presentation was given by staff. There was some discussion about the spacing of the 
wooden slats. The PZHAC determined that a small amount of spacing actually created a more 
attractive look to the fence. Commissioner Prieto made a motion to approve the building permit 
with the condition that the slats be spaced no more than two inches apart, seconded by 
Commissioner Apodaca, and approved by acclaim. 
 

Sign Permit Requests: 
h. Case 012401 – 2355 Calle de Guadalupe, submitted by Gerry Harrell for Double Eagle Restaurant, a 

request for a sign permit to replace an existing sign with a new sign for Pepper’s Café and Bar, a part of 
the original restaurant. Zoned: Historical Commercial (HC). 
A brief presentation was given by staff. There were no issues. Commissioner Preto made a motion 
to approve the sign with the condition that the portion of the sign advertising “Margaritas” be no 
larger than allowed by the sign code for such signs, seconded by Commissioner Lucero, and 
approved by acclaim. 
 

 
Special Use Permit 
i. Set a date for a Special Use Permit Public Hearing and Meeting 

The PZHAC voted unanimously to set a date of August 17, 2015 for the Special Use Permit. 
 

Code Amendments: 
Amendment for Temporary and Itinerant Vendors  

a. The date for a joint work session between the Messila Board of Trustees and the PZHAC will be 
discussed and finalized. 
Staff informed the PZHAC that a Special Work Session would be held at 5:30 (just before the 
regularly scheduled BOT meeting) on August 10, 2015. 
 

b. An extension of the Town Moratorium on Food Trucks will be discussed and voted on.  
It was determined by Staff and the PZHAC that a vote on an extension, if necessary, would 
take place after the Special Work Session. 

 
6. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 
 

7. PZHAC/STAFF COMMENT 
None  
   

8. ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:30 pm. 

  



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PZHAC 

ADMINISTRATIVE (CONSENT) 
APPROVALS 

AUGUST 17, 2015 
  









 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PZHAC NEW BUSINESS 

AUGUST 17, 2015 

  





SPECIAL USE PERMIT REQUEST 
CASE S15 - 001 

[PZHAC REVIEW – 8/13/15]  
 
 

S15-001 – Submitted by Roxanna Gate for2 the “Roundtable Children’s Academy Daycare and Preschool”, a request for a Special 
Use Permit to allow a day care center and preschool to operate at a former restaurant at this location. The SUP includes a request 
for approval of a Business Permit and a Sign Permit (Case 012407) for the proposed use. Zoned: General Commercial (C). 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The subject property was previously used as a restaurant. The restaurant is no longer in business, and the applicant would like to use 
at least two of the existing buildings for a day care and eventually a preschool operation (See attached diagram.) The open area 
between the two daycare rooms will be used as a play area.  
 
According to a statement provided by the applicants, the application is for a daycare for children and preschool that will operate from 
6:00am to 7:00 pm on week days (with the exception of major holidays). The applicants propose to serve about twenty children with 
about five employees. Parking for staff will be in the adjacent paved parking lot at the rear of the building. Parents will use the same 
parking lot when dropping off or picking up children. There should be no disruption to local traffic.   
 
The applicants are also applying for a business license and a sign permit along with the special the permit. A copy of the proposed 
sign is attached. The applicant will provide further information at the meeting concerning the installation of the sign. 
 
STAFF REVIEW: 
An issue brought up in discussion of the use with the Town Fire Chief is that the new use of the structure is a considered a different 
occupancy for building and fire code purposes than was originally approved when the restaurant began business at this location. As a 
result, certifications that the structure meets the requirements of the new use will be required before a business license is issued. 
(Fallon Vincell, one of the applicants, has been informed by staff that both CYFD (Children, Youth and Family Department) and 
CID (Construction Industries Division) of the State will both have to approve the proposed use before the permit can be issued for a 
daycare or preschool.)  
 
As required by the Code, certified letters were sent to the fifteen property owners who own the seventeen properties within three 
hundred feet of the subject property. Staff received two letters from notified property owners, and a personal visit from another 
owner that was notified. All three were concerned that the proposed school would affect future uses of the surrounding properties by 
limiting changes to existing uses, or preventing the issuance of liquor licenses to new uses due to their being within three hundred 
feet of the school. 
 
Concern was also stated by the owner of the bed-and-breakfast located near the school that noise from the school would affect the 
ambiance of the hotel, whose pool is located near the property line with the proposed school.  
 
The proposed use is an allowed use in the General Commercial (C) zoning district with a special use permit. 
 
There is another school in the immediate area (Las Cruces Academy). In researching that case, it was found that the Las Cruces 
Academy was approved by the Board of Trustees on July 23, 2012 with the condition that the permit be good for three years. Those 
three years have run out as of July of this year. The Las Cruces Academy has been notified of this condition, and will be working 
with staff to renew their permit. There have been no issues on record with this school in the past three years.  
 
The PZHAC will need to determine if the proposed use will be a benefit to the Town, or if it will create a more negative impact to 
potential future uses in the area that will outweigh the benefits. 
 
If the PZHAC finds that the new school will be an overall benefit to the community and decides to approve the school, the following 
condition (in addition to any other conditions applied as a result of this meeting) should be applied: all governing agencies involved 
with the use; especially CYFD, CID, and the Town Fire Chief, shall provide approval of the new use in writing prior to a business 
permit being released by staff.  
 
PZHAC OPTIONS: 
1. Recommend approval of application. 
2. Recommend approval of application with conditions. 
3. Reject the application. 
 
PZHAC ACTION: 











PLANNING ZONING HISTORICAL APPROPRIATENESS COMMISSION 
(PZHAC) 

RESOLUTION 2015-____ 

 

WHEREAS,  the PZHAC convened on August 17, 2015 at a regular PZHAC meeting 
and heard the case regarding a special use permit request for a school,  requested by Roxanna 
Gates for Roundtable Childrens Academy; and 

WHEREAS, all current members of the  PZHAC were present; and 

WHEREAS, the application for a special use permit was filed on July 9, 2015; and 

WHEREAS, neighboring property owners within 100 feet of the subject property were 
notified of the proposed special use permit by certified mail as per MTC 18.85.160 and the 
property was posted giving notice of proposed hearing; and 

WHEREAS, there were three notified property owners that responded (two by letter, one 
in the office) with concerns about noise and impacts to the ability to modify existing or obtain 
future liquor licenses; and 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing was held by the Planning, Zoning, and Historical 
Appropriateness Commission on August 17, 2015, according to the requirements of MTC 
18.85.150, during their regular meeting; and 

 WHEREAS, the Public Hearing of August 17, 2015 was closed after taking public 
comments; and 

 WHEREAS,  the case was considered at the regular meeting following the Public 
Hearing at which meeting the PZHAC determined that the benefits to the Town outweighed the 
potential negative impacts to the local community; and  

 WHEREAS, the PZHAC voted to recommend the case for approval; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 

The Planning, Zoning and Historical Appropriateness Commission of the Town of 
Mesilla recommends the request for a special use permit, with findings of fact for said approval 
as stated in “Attachment A” attached to this resolution. 

RESOLVED on this 17th day of August, 2015. 

 

       __________________________________ 
       Russell Hernandez, Chairman 

 



















BUILDING PERMIT REQUEST CASE 012388 
[PZHAC REVIEW – 8/13 /15] 

STAFF ANALYSIS 
 
 

Item: 
Case 012388– 2979 Camino Castillo; submitted by G.L. Green and Associates for David and Joan Hirsch, a request for a residential 
building permit to construct an 1100 square foot guest house/casita near a pool at the rear of an existing dwelling at this 
address. Zoned: Single Family (R-1) 

 
Staff Analysis and Recommendation: 
The size of the guest house was the subject of a variance case heard by the Mesilla Board of Adjustments at a meeting heard on July 6, 
2015. The case was denied. As a result, the applicants attended a work session with the PZHAC on July 20 to determine what would be 
allowed under the Code. One of the topics discussed was the fact that if the structure did not meet the accepted requirements to be 
defined as a living quarter, or “guest house”, it would not be considered a “guest house”. If the structure were designed and used as an 
accessory to the pool, and was not used to provide guests a place to stay, it would not need a variance. This is especially true if the 
structure is going to be used primarily as a pool cabana.  
 
The applicants have since made changes to their plans, and intend to use the structure as a pool house and outdoor entertainment area 
for the pool and their existing house. Construction is to take place as part of a plan for the entire property, and includes an addition to 
the main house. This construction is also part of the building permit presented here.  
 
Estimated Cost: @ $330,000.00 

 
Consistency with the Code: 
As proposed, both the addition to the main dwelling and the pool house are consistent with Section 18.30.020 (E) (Uses permitted) 
of the Code, which allows “Accessory uses customarily incidental to a single-family dwelling”. The proposed structures are also 
consistent with the Building Codes. (Chapter 15 of the MTC).  

 
Findings of Fact: 

• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and recommend approval of this request to the BOT. 
• The plans for the structures have been changed to meet the requirement of the Code for the Single Family (R-1) zone. 
• The PZHAC has determined that the proposed structures will not be detrimental to the Town. 
• The applicants will use the pool house for personal use only. 
• The PZHAC has determined that the proposed structure meets all applicable Code requirements. 

 
PZHAC OPTIONS: 
1. Recommend approval of application to the BOT. 
2. Recommend approval of application with conditions to the BOT. 
3. Reject the application. 

 
PZHAC ACTION: 

 
 
 
 

Prepared by: Larry Shannon 
Date prepared: 6/10/15 
Date Modified: 8/13/15 





















BUILDING PERMIT 
REQUEST CASE 012406 

[PZHAC REVIEW – 8/13/15] 
STAFF ANALYSIS 

 
 
 
Item: 
Case 012406 – Submitted by Fred Flores for Armando and Judy Alba, a request for a building permit to 
allow a rear patio on an existing dwelling at 2691 McDowell Rd. to be fully enclosed. Zoned: Single 
Family R-1). 

 
Description of Work to be Done: 
The applicant would like to enclose an existing porch at the rear of the dwelling. The porch is inset into 
the outlines of the dwelling  and is surrounded on three side by the dwelling.  
 
Estimated Cost: @ $ $9,700.00 
   
Consistency with the Code:  
The request is consistent with the following Sections of the MTC that specifically apply to this project:   

18.33.090 Design components or development criteria and compliance checklists. 
The proposed enclosure will comply with all requirements of this section. 
18.30 R-1 Single Family Residential Zone.  
The proposed enclosure will comply with all of the requirements of the zone and will match the 
existing structure. 

The request is consistent with the all other sections of the Building and Zoning Codes that may be 
applied to this project. 
 
Findings of Fact: 

• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and approve this request. 
• The proposed work consists of enclosing an existing porch. 
• The proposed installation will have little or no impact on the overall appearance of the structure.  
• The proposed work meets all applicable Code requirements. 

  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Based on the Findings of Fact above, Staff recommends approval of this application as requested. 
 
PZHAC OPTIONS: 
1. Approve the application.     
2. Approve the application with conditions. 
3. Reject the application. 

 
PZHAC ACTION: 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by: Larry Shannon 
Date prepared: 8/13/15 








	PZHAC WORK SESSION ITEMS-8.17.15.pdf
	17.20.010 Preliminary plat.
	17.20.020 Storm drainage analysis plan.
	17.20.030 Improvements.
	Chapter 17.40 VARIANCES AND EXCEPTIONS
	17.40.010 Allowed when.
	17.40.020 Application.
	17.40.030 State law mandatory.
	17.40.040 Final approval.


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



